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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S RLEPORT

Hector Balderas, State Auditor
and

John H. Garcia, Mayer

ancd The Board of Trustees

Village of Jemez Springs

Jemez Springs, New Mexilco

I have audited the accompanying r[inancial statements of the
governmental activities, the busginess-~type activities, each major
fund, budgetary comparisons for the general fund and major special
revenue funds, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Village of Jemez Springs (“Villege”) as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the Village’'s basic
financial statements as listed in the Lable of contents. I have
also audited the financial statements of each of the Village’s
nonmajor governmental funds, the respective budgetary compariszons,
and the major capital projects fund budgetary comparison presented
as supplementary information in the accompanying conbining and
individual fund financial stetements as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2009, as listed in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Village’ s management. My
responsibility is to express opinions on thegéd financial statements
based on my audit.

I conducted my audit in accordance with auditing shandards
generally accepted in the United States of America and with
standards applicable Lo financlal audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that I plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable azsurance about whether the financilal
statements are free of material misstatement. B&n audit includes
examining, on a test basls, evidence supporting the amounts and
discleosures in the fipancial statements, An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall ELinancial
statement presentation. T believe that my audit provides a
reasonable basgis for my opinionz.

In my opinidon, the financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position
of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
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Village, a3 of June 30, 2008, and the respective changes in
financial position and c¢ash flows, thereof and the respective
budgetary comparisons for the general fund and majox special
revenue funds for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United 3tates of America. In
addition, in my opinion, the fimancial statements referred to ahove
pregent fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of each nommajor dovernmental fund and the respective
changes in financial position and cash flows, thereof and the
respective budgetary comparisens of the nonmajor governmental
funds, the capital project fund, and enterprise funds for the vear
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Awditing Standards, T have also
issued a report dated November 18, 2009, on my counsideration of the
Village of Jemez Springs’ internal contrel over financial reporting
and my Ltegt of its compliance with c¢ertain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant adgreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of my testing
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report 1s an integral part of the andit performed in accordance
with Governmental Auvditing Standards and should be considered in
assessing the result of my audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis& information on pages 3
through 10, are not a2 reguired part of the Dbasic financial
statements but are supplewmentary information required by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. I
have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted of
ingquires of management regarding the methods of measurement and
pregentation of the required supplementary information. However,
I did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the
bazie Tfinancial gtatements and the combining and individuval fund
financial statements that collectively comprise the Village’s
financial statements and budgetary comparisons. The introductory
section and 8chedule of Changes in Assets and Liabilities for
Agency Funds are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are not a required part of the basic financlal statements and, in
my opinion, are fairly stafted in all material respects in relation
to the basic financial s&tatements taken as a whole.

: LA A

Novembh&r 18, 20009

.



MANAGEMENT’/ § DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our discuzsion and analysis of Lhe Village of Jemez Springs’ financial
performance provides an overview of the Village’s financial activities
for the fiscal year ended Jupe 30, 2009. Please read it jin conjunction
with the Village’s Financial statements, which begins on page 11.

Financial Highllghts

The Village of Jemez Springs’ net assets increased 14 percent as a
result of this year’'s operations. Net assets of our bhusiness—type
activitiea decreased by 540,391, or nearly 1 percent, due to
administration fees transferred to the general fund and net assets of
our governmental activilies increased by $704,330, or nearly 15 percent,
due to completion of the walkway, purchase of police vehicle and
performing arts stage and zound eguipment.

During the year, Lhe Village of Jemez Springs had expenses that were
$568,240 lezs than the receipts generated in tax and olher revenues,
including capital project monies, for governmental programs (before
special items and transfers); in comparison to last year, when revenues
exceeded expense by $404,068.

In the Village of Jewez Springs’ business-type activities, operating
revenues increased Lo $§453,323 from $456,776 and expenses decreased to
$434,373 from 5442,854 in 2008.

Total cost of all of the Village of Jemez Springs’ govexnmental programs
increased by $52,787, or nearly 10 percent, with one new program added
this vyear. Thle increase is due to 1increased personnel and new
performing arts fund.

The general fund reportad an decrease this year of §1,106.

Using this Annual Report

Thiz annual report conagists of a serxies of financial statements. The
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities (on pages 11 and
12) provide jinformation about the activities of Lhe Village of Jemez
Springs as a whole and present a longer-kerm view of the Village's
finances. Fund financial staltements start on page 13, For governmental
activities, these statements tell how theze services were



financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending.
Fund financial) statements alzo report the Village’s operations in more
detail than the government-wide statements by providing information
apout the Village’s most significant funds. The remaining statements
provide Financial information about activities for which the Village
acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of those outside of
the government .

Reporting the Village of Jemez Springs as a Whole

Our analysis of the Village =s a whole begins on page 11, ©ne of the
most important qguestions asked about the Village’s finances is, "ls Cthe
Village of Jemez Springs as a whole better off a3 a result of the year's
activikies?” The Statement of Net Assets and the Stakement of
Activities report information about the Village as a whole and aboul its
achlvilliies in a way Lthat helps answer thils question. These statements
include all assets and liabilities wusing the accrual basis of
accounting, which is aimilar to the accounting used by most privake-
sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and axpenses are
taken inte account regardless of when cash is received or paid. Based
on the current year activities, the Village is better off financially.

These two statements report the vVillage’s net assets and changes in
Chem. You can think of the Village’s net assets -~ the difference
between assets and liabilities - as one way to measure the Village’s
financial health, or financial pesition. Over +%ime, increases ox
decreases in the Village’s net assets are one indicator of whethexr its
financial health i1z improving oxr deteriorating. You will need to
consider otbher nonfinancial facktoxs, however, such as changes in the
Village’'s property tax base and the condition of the Village's roads,
to mssess the overall health of the Village of Jemez Springs.

In the Statement of Nelt Assets and the Statement of Achtlvities, we
divide the Village into two kinds of activitiles:

Government achkivilties - Most of the Village’s basic sexvices are
reported here, including the police, fire, public works, public
library, and general administratleon. Gross receipts tax, property
taxes, franchise fees, and state and federal grants finance most
of lthese activities.

Business-type activities - The Village chatges a fee fto customers
f£o help it cover all or moat of the cost of certain services it
provides. The Village's Sewer System and Bath House facilities
are reported here.



Reporting the Village's Most Significant Funds

our analysia of the Village’s major funds begins on page 13. The fund
financial statements begin on page 13 and provide defailed information
about the most signilflcant Funds - not the Village as a whole. Some
funds are required to be established by State law and by bond covenants.
However, the Village Trugtees establishes octher funds to help it
control and manage money for particular purposes or Lo show that it is
meating legal responsibilitles for using certain taxes, grants, and
other money {like granta received from the New Mexice Environment
Department) . The Village’s two kinds of funds - governmental and
proprietary - u=ze different accounting approaches.

Governmental funds - Most of the Village of Jemez Springs’ basic
services are reporbted in dovernmental funds, which focus on how
money flows into and oul of those funds and the balances left at
year end fthat are asvailable for apending. Thesge funds are
repotted usging an accounting method called modified accrual
account, which measgures cash and all other financial assets that
can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund
statements provide a detailed short-term view of the Village's
general geoverxnment operations and the basic services it provides.
Governmental fund infotmation helps you determine whether Chere
are more or fewer flnanclal resocurces that can be spent in the
near future to finance the Village’'s programs. We describe the
relationship (or differences) between governmental activities
(reported in the Staktement of Net nAssets and the 3tatemsnt of
Activities) and governmental funds in a reconciliation on page 14.

Proprietary funds = When the Village of Jemez Springs charges

customers for the services it provides - whether to outside
customers or to other units of the Village - these services are
generally reported in preprietary funds. Propristary funds are

reported in the same way that all activities are reportecd in the
Statement of Net Assels and the Statement of Activities. In factk,
the Village's enterprise funds (a component of proprietary funds)
are the same as the business-Lype activities we report in the-
government-wide statements but provide more detail and additional
information, such as cash flows, for proprietary funds.



The Villade of Jemez Springs as Trustee

The Village is the trxustee, or fiduciary, for its trust and agency

monies. All of the Village’s fiduciary activities are repeorted in
separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Assets and Changes in Fiduciary Net
Assels on pages 23 and 68, We exclude these activities f[rom the

Village’s other financial statements becauvse the Village cannot use
these assets to finance its operations. The Village is responsible for
ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are uvsed for their
intended purposes.

Financlal. Analysis of the Village as a Whole

This gection will discusg and analyze signhificant differences. our
analysis below focuses on the net assets (Table 1) and changes in net
assets (Table 2) of the Village’s governmental and busineas-type
activities.

Table 1
Village of Jemez Springs
Neit Aaretr
{In Thonagands)

Govermvmental Bugineaas-Type
Acrivitiesn Activities Total
2008 2008 2009 2008 20098 2008

Current ane orther asaeta & 428 4 352 s 85 § 67 5 Rl13 % 419
Caplal aszeta 3,339 2,578 1,053 2,016 5,282 4,534
Tolal assets 3,787 2,830 2,038 2,083 5,848 5,013
Long-texrm debt outstanding 84 75 19 25 103 100
Other liabilllties 175 51 35 34 210 BS
Total liabillities 259 _ 126 54 59 313 185

Net asgets
Tnvestad in capital
assets, net of

ralated debtl 3,233 2,467 1,928 1,986 5,16l 4,403
Restylared 103 lel - 103 1.6l
unresiyici-ed 172 176 56 Af 228 214
Talal net aadels $ 3,508 5 2,804 ¢ 1,984 3 2,024 3 5,452 5 4,828

The net assets of our business=type activities decreased by 2 percent
($1,983,898 compared to $2,024,289 1n 2008); this decrease was generated
from depreciation and administration fees paid from the Bath House
Enterprlse to the general fund in the form of transfers.



Table 2
Villagae of Jeme? Springs
Changes in Net Assets
{(In Thousands)

Governmental Business-Type
hotivities Activities Tolka)ll
20085 2008 2002 2008 2008 2008
Revenues
brogram rovenuea
tharges for mervicen 5 32 5 49 S 453 3% 487 3 491 3 FDg
State grants 688 636 a8 £36
General revenued
State taxes 178 154 174 154
Other taxes 24 20 24 21
oihes _32 _3s 32 35
Total revenues 1,134 935 459 457 1,613 1,392
Expenses
General government 208 194 208 194
Public safetly 192 159 182 158
Cullkure and recreation 110 78 110 78
Mighway ancd streets 74 a3 70 99
Interest on long-term debl 5 2 1 2 5 1
Bath House 301 305 301 308
Sewer L - 132 137 132 137
Total expenses 585 532 434 444 1,019 976

Excess (deficiency) before
special iltems and

cransfears 569 403 25 13 59014 116
Transfers 135 70 (h5) (68) 70 2
Increase (decrease) ih net

asacts 2 704 $ 473 § . (40) % . (55) 3 664 3 . 418

The Village’'s total revenues (excluding apecial items) increased by
5217,959, The total eoat of all programa and services was increased by
552,787, with one new program added this year. Ourxr analysis below
separately considers the operations of governmental and business—type
acltivities.

Businegas—-Type Activilies

Table 2) increased by $2,547 (§459,323 in 2009 compared to $456,776 in
2008) and expenses decreased by 510,231, The factors driving these
results include:

The Bath House was in operation for the entire year of 2009 and
has been very profitable for the Village. 'The Bath House paid
administrative fees to the Village of Jemez Springs General Fund
in the amount of 564,163 for Iy 20009.

The Jemez Springs Sewer System saw 1ts operaltlon revenues increase
by 7,648, while operating expenses decreased 355,639.
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The Village Tund

The Village of Jemez Springs had an decrease of 51,106 in the Village's
General Tund. The primary reasons Lor Lthe General Fund’s decrease
mirror the govermmental activitie= analy=sis highlighted on page 3. In
additien, these other changes in fund balances should be noted.

Governmental Activities revenues for the Village decreased $54,514,
while total expenses increasad 545,899. The cost of all governmental
activities this year was 5363,76) cotparad to 3$317,762 last year.

The Village spent $836,.211 this year on capital projects, which was
reimbursed by various grants and appropriations during the vear.

Each year, the State provides the Village with a portion of the gascline
tax revenues it collects. '"hi=s monesy can only bes used to replace,
majinktain, ot improve the Village’'s roads. This year, 55,016 of these
resources, weres used primarily for paving the scuth end of Mooney Blwvd
and bridge repair.

General Mund Budgetary Highlights

budget twice during the year. There were no amendments to the
enterprise funds this year.

Capital Azset and Debt Administration Capital Assets

At the end of 2009, the Village of Jemez Spiinds had 54,863.889 invested
in a broad range of capital assets, including police and fire eguipment,
buildings, park facilities, roads, and sewer lines (ses Table 3 below).
This amount represenks a net increase (lncluding additions and
deductions) of 5867,861 over last year.
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Tabhle 3
Village of Jemez Springs
Change in Capital Assets

Netl
Balance Additions/ Balance
June 30, 2008 Deletions June 30, 2008

Non-Depreciable Agsets:

Land and Jand improvements s 397,058 § 31,650 8 428,708
olLhel Capllal Asnsets:
Infrastructure 1,653,447 757,144 2,410,591
Buildings 2,040,941 2,040,941
Turniture and other equipment 1,082,305 79,087 1,171,372
Improvements 234,713 234,713
Less: Accumulated depreciation (B23,903) (169,825) _{983,728)
Total other capital assekb S 4£197,50% $_666,386 $ 4,863,889

Capital Asset and Debl Administration Capital Assels

Thig year’s2 major additionsa included:

The Village of Jemez Springs complete Phase I of the Walkway Projectk
this year, completed the construction of an outdoor stage on the eivic
center property; as well as, purchased a new police vehicle fox the JS
BPollce Department

Debt

The Village was able to pay off Lhe Economic Develepment loan by June
30, 200%9. At year end, the Village had $147,557 in bonds and noftes
outstanding wversus 5152,827 last year - a decrease of 3.4 pexcenk - as
shown in Table 4.

Table 4
Village of Jemer 8prings
Outstanding Debht
at June 30, 2009

Net
Governmental, Business-type Total Primary
Activities Activities Gavernment
Revenue bands s $ 25,000 $ 25,000
NM Finance Authority 106,138 106, 139
Other lang-term debt B,755 7,663 16,418
Totals $ 114,894 $ 32,663 $ 147,557



Other obligations include accrued vacation pay and sick leave. More
detailed informaltion about the Village’s long-term liabilitiea is
presented in Notes 1, 3 and 6 to the financial =tatements.

Fconomic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The Village of Jemez Springs’ elected and appointed officials considered
several factors when sethting the [igcal year 2005 budge: and fees that
will be charged for the business-type activities. The Village’s sewer
fees for individual and business were increased in TY 2005 and continue
to be sufficient for the upcoming fiscal year.

These indigators were taken into account when adopting the General Fund
budget for 2002. Amounts avallable for expenditures in the General Fund
budget are $386,023, an increase of $12,540 over the final 2009 budget
of $373,483. This increade is due to the Village giving wage increases
of cost-of=-living adjustments in FY 2010 budget.

If these exlimates are realized, the Village of Jemez Springs budgetary
General Fund balance 1= expected to increase modestly by the close of
2010. More importantly, however, this will be accomplished without
gelling capital assels or restructuring long-term debl to allevialte cash
flow pressurss,

Village capital projects have a balance of approved appropriationsz and
GRIF T2 monie=s of £633,726 for Phase II of the walkway project and
$23,765 For economic development of the community center property; it
iy anticipated all appropkiations will be expended by FYE.

The Village of dJemez Springs has requested that [Y 2009 Highway
Department Co=-0p motles be used for the re-planking the south bridge and
blading, ghaping, graveling and drainage of the cul-de-sacs off of and
along Mooney Blvd.

As for the Villagde of Jemez Springs business-type activities, we expect
that the 2010 results will also continue to improve. The Rath Housze will
have a decrease of 510,000 in administration fees in ornder to build a
reserve accounting for future capital improvements

Contacting the Villacge off Jemez Springs Financial Management

This financial report is dezigned to provide a general overview of the
village’s finances and to show the Village's accountahility for the
money it receives. If you have guestions about this report or need
additlonal financial information, contact the Treasurer at the Village
Municipal Offiee in the Village of Jemez Springs, FP.O. Box 269, Jemez
Springs, New Msxico.

__Lo_



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2

- GOVERNMENT~-WIDE

0o¢g

Primary Government

Business

Government Type
ASSETYS Activities Activities Total
Current Aszsets:
Cash and cash eguivalents 5 197,872  § 25,276 8§ 223,148
Reatristed assets:
Cash and cash eguivalents 32,250 32,250
Total cash(Note 11) 197,872 57,526 255,358
Revelvables (net) 208,103 9,403 217,906
Taxres receivable 19,427 19,427
bue Lo/from others (Note 16) 1,-208 1,208
Prepaid expenses 1,223 436 1,659
Inventories 16,837 16,837
Tolal current assets 127,833 84,602 512,435
Noncurrent Assets:
Land 413,581 15,125 428,709
Capital aasets, net of
depreciation {Note 14) 2,526,028 1,837,860 4,863,889
Total noncurranl. assets 3,335,613 1,852,985 5,292,598
Total Assets $ 3,767,446 5 2,037,387 S 5,805,033
LIARILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounlba payable 5 128,829 3 5,673 5 144,502
Accrued liabilities 5,418 15,353 20,771
Due within one year (Note &) 30,782 13,663 44,445
Total., current liabilities 195,029 34,689 209,718
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due in more than one year(Note ©) R4,112 L9, 000 L03,1L2
Total Liabilities % 258,141 5 53,688 $ 312,830
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital asgsels,
net of related debt 8§ 3,233,474 5 1,927,885 5 5,161,459
Restricted for:
Capital projects (1,997 (1,997)
Debt service
Other 105,121 106,121
Unhrestricted 171,707 55,913 227,620
Total Net Asmets $ 3,508,306 ¢ 1,883,898 $ 5,492,203

See Accompanying Notes Cto Financial Statements

__]_1_



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
June 30,

Program Revenues

- GOVERNMENT-WIDE
20089

Operating
Grants and

FTunctions/Programsg
Primary government:
Governmental activities

Judicial s 16,527
General government 135,175
Public safety 141,772
Culture and

reareation 105,951
Highways and sbreets 70,161
Depreciation 106,717
Tnterest on debt 4,758

Yol:al governmental
activitiles 588,065

Business-type activities:

Wagte Walker 131,635
Rath HMHouse 301,234
Tnterest on debt 1,500

Tolal buglness~type
activities 434,373
Total primary
governmenk

$ 1,019, 438 $ 491,296

Changesg in Net Assets
Nekt (expense) revenue

General Revenues:
Taxes levied for general
Taxes levied for sgpeclal uscxz
Unrealtrickted investment eatning
Miscellaneous

Transfer - internal activities
Total general revenuss/transfers

Change in net agsets
Net assets, beginning of yeax

Net assets, end of year

See Accompanying Notes

Capital Net
Grants and (BExpense)

Expense for 8Service Conbtrlbution Contribution Revenue

? 3 8,166
63,415 (75,764)
51,542 (82,950)

6,904 59,7789 742
50,000 616,270 596,109
(1L0a,717)
(4 758)
171,861 716,068 334,828
(37,082)
63,5372
(1,500)
24,850
& 171,861 716,059 § 355,778
Business—
Government Type
Activities Activilles Total
5 334,828 s 24,9880 § 359,778
178,260 178,260
23,875 23,875
2,631 607 3,238
29,616 29,646
135,090 (65,948) 69,142
369,502 (65,341) 304,161
704,330 (40,391) 663,839

2,803,575

8 3,508,305

2,024,285 4,828,264

$ 1,983,858% 5,482, 208

to Tinancial Statements



STATE OF NEW MEXICO

VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

GOVERNMENTAT. FUNDS

BALANCE SHEET
June 30, 2009

Fire Road
General Fund Fund
ASSETS Fund (Special) (Special)
Cash and cash equivalents 5 169,018 5 10,805 5 15,512
Recelvables (net) 1,035
Taxes receivable la,111 417
Prepald expense 1,223
Due from olthers (Note 16) 1,208
Total Assetls S 188(§g§ 5 10,805 5§ 15,929
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable S 2,71 $ 23 8
Accrued liabilities 5,418
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Total Liabilities 8,133 23 -
I'UND BALANCES
Unreserved, reported in:
General Fund 180,462
Special Revenue Fund 10,782 15,928
Capital Project Fund
Debt Service Iund
Total Fund Balances 180,462 10,782 15,929

Total Liabilities and

Fund Balances § 188,585

5 10,805

5 15,929



Rl

S

Capital Nonmajor
Project Government
rund Funds
(73,445) S 75,982
207,068
2,899
133,623 5 78,BBR1
135,620 $ 471
135,620 471
78,410
(1,997)
(1,9987) 78,410
133,623 5 78,881

See Accompanhying Noltes to Financial Statements

g

R

5

Totals

197,872
208,103
19,427
1,223

1,208
427,833

138,829
5,418

144,247

180,462
105,121
(1,997)

283,586

427,833

_13_



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE
SHEET TO STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
Year Ended Jume 30, 2005

Total Fund Balance - Total Governmental Funds $ 283,58¢6

Amounts reported for governmental activities
in the Statement of Net Assets differs firom
the amounts reported in the Governmental Funds

RBalance Sheet because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities
are not current financial resources and therefore

are not reported in the governmental funds

balance sheet
Cost of aszset capitalized(total) 3,904,328
Accumulated Depreciation (564,715)

Long=term liabilities, including bonds and loans
payable and compenzaled absences are not due
and payable in the current period, and therefore,
are not reported in the government fund
balance sheet
(30,782)

Due within ohe year
Due in more than one year (84,112)

Net assets of governmental activitiles $ 3,508,305

See Nccompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPRINGS

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND EBALANCES
Year Ended JUNE 30, 2009

REVENUES
Taxes
Grants
Fines and fees
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Torkal Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:
General government
Public safety
Culture and recreation
Highways and streets
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal payment
Interest
Total Expenditures

Exeess of Revanue
Over (Expenditures)

QTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES)

Transfers in
Transfers out
Total Other Financing
(Uses) BSources

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fire
‘' General mMand
Fund (Special)
S 178,260 3

63,415 30,042
24,693

14,342 202

280,710 30,244
155,485

78, 690 48, 097
58,299
69,718
1,559

10,005

3,548

363,761 61,650

(83,051) (31,406)
118,821
(36,876)
81,945

(1.,1086) (31,4086)

42,188

FUND BALANCES, Beginning of Year 181,568

FUND BALANCES, End of Year

$ 180,462

8 10,782

Road
Funa

(Special)
s 5,016
50,000

58

55,074

7).,694

{16,620)

32,549

5 15,929



Capital Nonmajor
Prroject Governmeinl
Fund Funds Totals
5 18,859 & 202,135
716,058 28,404 887,920
7,280 7,280
17,675 32,277
716,058 72,218 1,154,305
155,485
13,749 140,536
46,539 104,838
— 69,7]_8
741,543 53,065 867,861
51,062 61,067
1,210 4,758
741,543 165,625 1,404,273
(25, 484) (83,407) {249,968)
338 109,516 228,675
(565) (37,441)
338 108,951 191,234
(25, 146) 15,544 (58, 734)
23,149 62,866 342,320
5 1,997) S 78,410 $ 283,586

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Shtatements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND RALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Net Changes in Fund Balance -
Total Governmental Funds 5 (58,734)

Amounts reported for governmental activities
ITn the Statement of Activities diffetrs
from the amounts reported 1in the
Statement of Revenues, bxpenditures and
Changes in Tund Balahce because:

Governmental funds rxeport capital outlays

as expenditures. However, in the Statement

of Activities, the cost of those azsets is

allocated over their estimated useful lives

as depreciation expense or are allocated to

the appropriate functional expense when the

cost is below the capitalized threshold.

This activity is reconciled as follows:
Cost of assets capltalized(total) 867,861
Depreciation expense (106,717}

Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure
in the governmental funds, but repayment of
debt decreases long-term liabilities in the
statement of unet assets 61,067

Proceeds of long-term debt recorded as an other
financing source for goverhmental funds but it
is not recorded in the statement of activities.

Proceeds of long term deht are liabilities. (56,144)
Net (increase) Ln compensated absences (3,003)

Change in net assets of governmental
activities 8 704,330

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statemenls
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STATE OF NEW MEXICOC
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAT FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
Variance
Original Final Favorable
REVENUES Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Grants 5 70,000 % 70,000 5 63,415 5 {6,585)
Fines and feesg 31,450 31,450 24,001 (7,449)
Charges for services 73,000 73,000 0 (73,000)
Taxes 167,800 194,888 183,075 (1,813)
Miscel laneous 44,300 68,614 14,342 (54,272)
Tolbal Revenues 386,550 437,952 294,B33 (143,119}
EXPENDITURES
General government 148,438 156,886 153,597 3,289
Public safety 85,521 85,521 78, 690 6,831
Public works 63,175 65,544 65,544 -
Culture and recreation 42,496 48,334 46,831 1,500
Highways and streets 4,000 4,174 4,174 -
Other - 13,024 13,024 -
Total Expenditures 343,630 373,483 361,863 11,620
IFxcesgs of revenue over
{undexr) expenditures 42,9820 64,489 (67,030) (1L31,489)
Other financing sources
(Uses)
Transfers - in 118,821 118,821
Transfers - out (36,876) (36,876)
Total other Tinancing
sources (uses) - 81,945 81,845
Revenues and other
financing sources over
(under) expenditures
and other usas 5 42,820 5_64,469 5_14,915 $_(49,554)

Reconciliation toe GAAP - Note 15

Sea Accompanying Notes to I'inancial Statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

RUDGE'TARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FIRE FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance
Original Final Favorahle
REVENUES Budgel Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Grantsa $ 42,632 § 43,042 S 43,042 5
Fines
Charges for services
Taxes
Miscel laneolus 202 202
Total Revenues 42,632 43,042 43,244 202
EXPENDITURES
Genheral government
Public safety 60,41 60,411 48,134 12,277
Culture and recreation
Highways and streets
Capital outlay
Rebt service 13,553 (13,5853)
Total expenditures 60,411 60,411 61,687 _(1,276)
Transfers out . -
FExcess of Revenue over
(under) Expenditures $(17,77%8) $(17,368) $(18,443) 5 _(1,074)

Budget-Cash appropriated
from prior year for current
year expenditures $ 25,248 % 28,248

Reconciliation to GAAP Rasis:
(Tncrease)Decrease In:

Accounts receivable (12,000)
Acconnlts payable 37
Net change in fund balance $ (31,4086)

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS3

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
SPECTAL REVENUE FUND
ROAD FUND

For the Year Ended June 30,

Original

REVENUES Rudget
Taxes 5 5,004
Grants 50,000
Donatjlons
Qther recelipts

Total Revepues 55,004

EXPENDITURES
General government
Public mafety
Culture and recreation
Highway and slreets 98,034
Capital outlay

Total expenditureg 98,034
Excess of Revenue over

(under) Txpenditures (43,030)
Other Ffinancing sources

(uses)

Trranafers - 1In

Tranzfers - out

Total other financing

sourced (uses) -

Revenues and other

finapncing sources over

{under) expenditures

and other uses $(43,030)

Budget - Cash appropriated

from prilor year for current

yvear expenditures $ 32,132

Reconciliation to GAAP Basis:
No adjustment required

See Accompanying Notes to

2009
Variance
Final Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
5 5,004 $ 5,016 5 1
50,000 50,000
58 58
55,004 55,074 70
98, 034 71,694 26,340
98,034 71,654 26,340
(43,030) (16,620) 26,410
$(43,030) $(16,620) $26,410
$ 32,132
5(16,620)
Financial Statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30, 20098

ASSETS
Current Assels:

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted assets:

Cash (Note B)

Toltal cash and equivalents
Receivabhlea (net)Note 4
Prepaid expense
Inventories

Total current assets

Noncurrent Assetis:

Land

Capital assetsg, nelt of
depreciation (Note 14)
Total noncurrent assets

Toktal Asasets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Diue within one year (Note 6)

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Due in more Lthan one year
Total Liabilities

NET ASSBETS
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt
Onrestricted
Tolal Net Asszets

Business~Type Activities

Enterprise Funds

Waste
Waler

$ 14,850

32,250

47,200
6,717
393

54,310

1,918,168

1,933,283

$ 1,987,603

=

210
1,276

9,811

11,300

19,000

$

30,300

1,908,293

49,010

$ 1,957,303

Bath

Housge Total
§ 10,326 8 25,276
32,250
10,326 57,326
3,086 9,803
43 436
16,837 16,837
30,282 84,602
15,125
19,692 1,937,860
1.9, 682 1,852,985
§ 49,984 3 2,037,587
5 5,463 3 5,673
14,077 15,353
3,849 13,663
23,389 34, 689
19,000
5 23,388 8 53,689
19,6082 1,927,985
6,803 55,913
$ 26,595 5 1,983,898

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEY SPRINGS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET A33ETS
PROPRILTARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Businesa-Type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Waste Bath
Water House Total
Operating revenue:
Waste Water Servica g 94,553 5 S 94,553
Charges for services 309,134 309,134
Gift Shop sales 95,636 55,636
Total operating revenue 94,553 364,770 459,323
Operating expense:
Salaries 32,983 88,061 132,044
Employee benelits 8,378 17,811 26,189
Contract services 115,019 115,009
Insurance 2,810 1,478 4,288
Profeasional fees 11,110 1,375 12,485
Supplies 2,618 28,512 31,131
OEfice expense 1,948 10,504 12,853
Telephone 1,159 3,101 4,298
Utilities 10,621 6,860 17,481
Depreciation . 59,209 3,889 63,108
Other operating 759 13,218 13,977
Total operating expense 131,635 301,238 432,873
Operating income (loss) (37,082) 63,532 26,450
Nonoperating Revenue (Expense):
Interest income 323 214 607
Interest expense (1,500) (1.,500)
Total Nonoperating Revenues
(Expense) (1.,.107) 211 (893)
Income before operating
transfers (38,189) 63,748 25,557
Tranzfers in
Tranafers out (285) (65, 663) _(65,848)
Change in Net Asgets (38,474) (1,917) (40, 351)
Net Assets, Beginning 1,885,777 28,512 2,024,289
Of Year
Nel Asasets,
nd of Year 5 1,857,303 $ _26,595 5 1,583,898

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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STATE OF WEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

RBusiness-Type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Waste Bath
Water Housze Tolal
Cash Flows from operating activiltiez:
Receipte from customers and
wsers 5 90,745 $ 362,911 5 453,686
Payments to asupplies and
employeesy (72,914) (302,310) (315,224)
Net cash provided (used}
operaking activities 17,831 60,601 78,432

Cazh flows from noncapital financinhg activities:

Principal paid on revenue bonds {5,000) {5,000)
Interest paid on reveaue bonds (L,500) (1,500}
Transferz in (oub) {2B5) (65, 663) 65,948)

Net rcagh provided (used)
noncapital [inancing

activities {6,788} 65,663) {72.,448)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Tnterest on investments ___ 383 214 607
Nel inecrcase (decpreasze) in cash
and cash eguivalents 11,438 (4,848) 6,59

Caszh and cash equivalents,
beginning of year 35,761 15,174 50,935

Cazh and cash egulvalents,
end of year $ 47,200 S 10,326 $ _Db7,526



Business~Type Activiliilies
Enterprise Funds

Waszte Bath
Water House Total
Reconciliatiew of operating income to
nek cash provided (used)} by
operating activities:
Operating income (loss) 5(37,082) $ 63,532 S 26,450
Adjustments to reconcile net lncome
to nell cash provided by operations:
Depreciatisn 52,2058 3,899 53,108
(Incresze) decreage Iln accounts
receivable (3,808) {1,859) {(5,667)
{Increase) decrease in inventory {8,592) (8,592)
(Increase) decrease Iln prepaid
axpense 45 3,852 3,897
Increase (decdrease) in accounts
payable (672) 213 (459)
Increase (decreacse) due to obther funds
Increade (decrease) in aatrued
liabhllities 139 (444) {305)
Met rcash provided (uged) by
operating actlvities $ 17,831 $ 60,601 $ 18,432

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

ETATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIARILITIES-

AGENCY FUNDS
June 30, 2009

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Total Assetls
LIABILITIES

Due to others (Note 186)

Total Liabilities

See Accompanying Notes Lo Financial Statements
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Note 1:

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

gummary_of Significant Accounting Policies

The Village of Jemez 3prings is incorporated as a village
in the state of New Mexico and operated under a Mayor-
Board of Trustees form of government. The Village
provides the following services: public safety (fire and
police), health and soc¢ial services, culture-recreation,
public improvements, planning and zoning, sewer services,
and general administrative services.

New Accountin

In June 1899, the Government Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) unanimously approved Statement No. 34, Basic
Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis - for State and Local Governments. Certain of
the significent changes in Lhe Statement include the
following:

For the First time, the financizal stalbements include:

A Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section
providing an analysis of the Village’'s overall
financial position and results of operations.

Financial statements prepared wusing Tull eaccrual
accounting for all of the Village's activities,
including infrastructure (roads, bridges, etc.).

A change in the fund financial statements to focug on
the major funds.

These and other changes are reflected in the accompanying
financial statements (including notes to financial
statements) . The Village has elected to implement the
general and infrastructure provisions(assets acquired
prior to July 1, 2006) of the Statement in the previous
year.

_24_



Noter

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

NOTES TO FINANCIAT, STATEMENTS
June 30, 20089

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Reporting Entity

In evaluating how to define fthe government for financial
reporting purposes, management has considered all
potential component units. The decisgion to include a

by applying the criteria set forth in g¢generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) and Government Accounting
Standards RBoard (GASRE) Statement.

The basic, but not Lthe only criteria Zfor including a
potential component unit within the reporting entity is
the governing body’s ability to exercise oversight
rasponsibility. The most significant manifestation of
this ability 1s financial intexdependency. Other
manifestations of the ability to exercise oversight
responsibllity include, but are not limitecd to, the
selection of governing authority the designation of
management, the ability to significantly influence
operations, and accountability for fiscal maltters.

A second criterion used in evaluating potential component
units is the scope of public service. Application of
this criterion involves consldering whether the activity
benefits the government and/or its citizens or whether
the activity i1s conducted within the geographic
boiindaries of the government and is ¢generally availleble
to its citizens.

A third criterion used to evaluate potential component
units for inclusion or exclusion from the reporting
ent:ity is the exisgtence of special financing
relationships regardless of whether the government 1is
able to exerclse oversight responsibilities. Based upon
the application of these «criteria, there were no
conmponeht units identified or excluded from the reporting
entity.
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Note 1:

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Ssummary of Sianificant Accounting Policiles (continued)

Basic Financial Statements - GovernmentC-wide

The Village’s basic financial statements include both
government-wide (reporting the Village as a whole) and
fund financial stalbements (xeporting the Village’s major
funds) . Both the government-wide and fund financial
statements categorize primary activities as either
governmental or business type. The Village’s police and
fire protection, parks, library and recreation, public
works, and general administrative services are classified
as governmental activities. The Village Bath House and
sewer services are classified as business-type
activities. Fiduciary funds nor component units that are
fiduciary in nature are not included in the government-
wide financlal statements.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Asselts, both the
governmental and business-type activities columns (a) are
presented on a consolidated hasis by column, and (b) are
reported on a full accrual, economlc resource basis,
which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as
well as long-term debt and obligations. The Village’s
net assets are reported in three parts - invested in
capital asselts, net of related debt; restricted net
assets; and unrestricted net assets. The Village first
utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying
activitlies.

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both
the gross and net c¢ost of each of the Village’s functions
and business-type activities (police, fire, public works,
etec.). The functions are also supported by general
government revenues (property, sales, and use taxes,
certain Intergovernmental revehnues, Lines, permits, and
charges, eltc.). The Statement of Activities reduces
gross expenses (ihcluding depreciation) by related
program revenues, operating and capital grants. Program
revenues must be directly associated with the function
(police, public works, community, and vyouth sexvices,
etc.) or a business-type achkivity. Operating grants

—2H-



Note 1:

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basic Financial Statements = Goverpment-wide (contintied)

include operating-specific and discretionary (either
operating or capital) grants while the capital grants
column reflects capital-specific grants.

The net costs (by function or business-type activity) are
normally covered by general revenue (property, sales or
gas taxes, intergovernmental revenues, interest income,
atc.).

The Village does not allocate indirect costs. An
administrative service fee is charged by the General Fund
to the other operating funds that is eliminhated like a
reimbursenent (reducing the revenue and expense 1n fthe
General Fund) to recover the direct costs of General Fund
services provided {finance, personnel, purchasing, legal,
technology management, etc.).

The government-wide focus is mole on the sustain ability
of the Village as an entity and the change in the
Village’s net assets resulting from the current year’s
activities.

Fund Accounting

The accounts of the Village are organized on the basis of
funds each of which is conzsidered a separate aceounting
entity. The operations of each fund arxe accounted for
with & separate set of self-balancing accounts that
comprise 1Ls assets, liabilities, fund equity revenues,
expenditures or expenses as appropriate. Government
resources are allocated to and accounted for in
individual funds based upon the purposes for which they
are to be spent and the means by which spending
activities are controlled. The various funds are grouped
in the financial statements in this report into six
generic fund types and three broad categories as follows;
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Note 1:

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

NOTES TO FINANCTAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

rund Accounlting (continued)

overnmental Funds:

General Fund - The general fund i3 used to account for
the resources traditionally associliated Wwilh
governments, except those required to be accounted for
in another fund. Revenue and expenditures of tha
federal revenue sharing programs are included for in
his fund.

Special Revenue Fund - Special revenue funds are used
to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
(other speciael assessments, expendable trust funds or
major capital projects) that are legally xestricted to
expenditure for specified purpeses.

Major fund speclfic to Lthe Village are:

Fire Fund - I'ire Fund, which is used to account for the
operation of the Village’s Fire Department. Financing
ls provided by a state allotment from the state fire
marshall Authority 59-53-1.

Road Fund - To account for funds used to maintain roads
for which the Village has respohsibility, financing
sources include motor vehicle registration and New
Mexico Stalte Highway Department. Cooperative Agreement
Expenditures are resglricted for the construction and
maintenance of the Village roads, Authority NMSA

67-4-), 1978 compilation.

Capital Projects Funds - Capital Projects Funds are
used to account for financial resources to be used for
the acguisition or construction of major facilities.

Debt Service Funds =~ Debt service funds are used Co
account for the accumulation oI funds for the periodic
payment of principal and interest on general long-term
debt.
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Note 1:

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

TO FPINANCIAIL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

NOTES

Summmary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Enterprise Fund

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise Funds are used to account
fox operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises - where
the intent of the governing body is that the costs
(expenses, including depreciation) of providing
gexrvices to the general public on a continuing basis be
financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Included in Government-Wide

Fiduclary__ Funds (Not

Statements)

Trust and Agency Fund - This fund is used to account
for funds received on behalf of the Administrative
Office for the Courts. Agency [Lunds are purely
custodial (assets equal liabilities) and do not invelve

measurement of results of operations.

Maior and Nonmajor Funds

The fund are further classified as major and nonmajor as

follows:

Major_ JFund:
Genheral Fund
Capital Project Fund

Special Revenue Funds:
Fire Fund
Road Fund

_2 9_

Sea above for description

TOo account for the
firancing, construction,
and maintenance of

capital ocutlay

See above for description



Nole 1

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

summary of Siagnificant Accounting Policies (continued)

Ma‘or and Nonmadiok Funds (contintied)

Nopmaior Funds:

The fTollowing are nonmajor funds - see page 49 for
descriptions.

Correction Fund

Parks and Recreation find
Emergency Medical Service Fund
Law Enforcement Protection TMund
Library Grant Fund

Lodgers Tax Fund

Debt ZService I'und

Performing Arts Fund

Basis of Accounting
Basis of accounting refers Lo when revenues and

expencditures or expenses are recognized in the accounts
and reported in Ethe financial staltements. Basis of
accounting relates to the timing of the measurement date,
regardless ol the measurement focus applied.

Both governmental and business-type activities in the
governmenlt-wide financial statements and the proprietary
and fiduciary fund financial statements are presented on
Lhe accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized
when earnhed, and expenses are recognized when incurred.

The modified accrual basis of accounting is followed by
the goverhmental fund types and agency funds for
financial statement purposes. Under the modified accrnal
basis of accounting, revenues and other governmental fund
Financial resource increments are recognized in the
accounting period in which they become susceptible to
accrual - that is, when they become both measurable and
available to finance expenditures of the fiscal period.
“Available” means collectible within the current period
or within 60 days alfter year-end. TIor state shared and
Jocally assessed taxes, avallable is defined as those
amounts collected within sixty days of the bhalance sheer
date.
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Note 1:

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of Accounting (continued)

Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified
accrual basis of accounting when the related fund
liability is incurred. An exception to this general rule
is that pripcipal and interest on general obligation
long-term debt which is recognized when due.

Cash basis accounting is utilized in the governmental
funds to assure effective budgetary control and
accountability. This legally prescribed budgetary basis
differs from generally accepted accounting principles in
the respect that the former does not allow for year-end
adjustments to be included 1in presentetion in the
statement of revenues, expenditures, and c¢hanges in fund
balance. This accounting principle has resulted in the
following differences bhetween revenues and expenditures
detailed in CLhe Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance and the Statement of Revenue,
Expenditures, Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual.

The proprietary fund is accounted for using the accrual
basis of accounfting. The revenues are recognized when
they are earned and expenses are recognized when
incurred. Billed sewer utility receivables are recorded
at year-end.

Capital Assels

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original
cost of 55,000 or more are reported at historical cost or
estimaeted historical cost. Contributed assels are
reported at fair market value as of the date received,
Additions, improvements, and other capital outlays that
significantly extend the useful life of an asset are
capitalized. Computer software is capitalized and
depreciated as reguired. The Village has a collection of
library Dbooks which have not been capitalized or
depreciated as part of capital assets. Other costs
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ 3PRINGS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

gummary of Sianificant Accounting Policies (continued)

Capital Assets (continued)

incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as
incurred. Depreciation on all assets ls provided on the
straight-line basis over the following estimated useflul
lives:

Ruildings 20-50 years
Water and sewer system 30-50 years
Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
Improvements 10-20 vyears
Other infrastructure 10-50 years

In June, 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASE) issued Statement No., 34 which requires the
inclusion of infrastructure capital assets in the
Village's basic financial statements, Infrastructure
assets include roads, bridges, underground pilpe (other
than related to utilities), traffic signals, etc. These
infrastructure assets are likely to be the largest asset
class of the Village. In accordance with Statement No.
34, the Village has included the value of all
infrastructure (using the depreciation approach) into its
bagic financial statements.

Rudget and Budgetary Accounting

Budgets are presented in the accompanying financial
statement for the general fund, special funds and
enterprise funds, which all have legally adopted budgels.
The budgets are prepared on the cash basis of accounting.
The Village follows these procedures in establishing the
budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

L. Prior to June 1, Board of Trustees of the Village
adopts a proposed operating budget for the fiscal
yealx commencing July 1, The operalbing budgets
inc¢lude proposed expenditures and the means of
financing them based on previous year’s history. The
budget is legally enacted through passage of an
ordinance.



Note 1:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL, STATEMENTS
June 30, 20083

nificant Accounting Policies (continued)

Summary of Sig

Budgel and Budgetary Accounting (continued)

2. The Village Clerk and Board of Trustees are
authorized Tto transfer budget between departments
within any fund, however, any revisions that alter
the total expenditures of any fund must be approved
by the New Mexic¢o Department of Finance and
Administration and the Locel Government Division.
Reviglong to include changes in the otiginal budget
that was adopted and amended during the fiscal year
in a legally permissible manner.

3. Formal budgetary integration 1s employed as a
management conlbrol device during the year for the
General Fund, Speclal Revenue Fund, Capital Projects
Fond, and Proprietary Fund.

4, Encumbrances arxe nolt reported in the budgets ot
financlal statements.

The level of classification detail in which
expenditure or expenzes may not leally exceed
appropriations for each budget is in fund Ctotal.
Appropriations lapse at year-end.

93}

Encumhrances

Encumbrance accounting is not utilized by the Village.

Investmenls

Investments consisting of certificates of deposits and
savings accounts have been recorded at cost.

Bccounte Recelvable

Accounts receivable consist of receivables from current
and delinquent billings for sewer ugage, maintained on
computerized records, and credit card recelvables for the
Bath House. Estimated uncollectible accounts are not
material and therefore the Village has not established an
allowance for doubllful accounts.
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June 30, 2003

Summary of Significant Accounling Pglicies (continued)

Accumulated Unpaid Leave

Accumulated unpaid leave of 58,755 1is reported in
Government-wide financial slbatements as an expense,
current and long-term liabilities. Accrued sick leave is
forfeited wupon termination of the employee. Aecrued
annual vacation leave 1s paid upon the termination,
separation or dismiszsal of the employee at the pay rate
last held.

Revenues in Proprietary Funds

Operating income reported in proprietary fund financial
statements include revepues and expenses related to the
primary continuing operations of the fund. Principal
operating revenues for the proprietary funds are charges
to customers for services. Principal operating sxpense
are the cost of providing goods or services and include
administration expense and depreciation of capital
assets. Other revenue ancd expense are classified a5 non-
operating in the financial statements.

Restriclted Resources

When both restricted sand unrestricted resources are
available for use, 1t 1is the Village'’s policy to use
restricted first, then unrestricted resources as needed.

Interfund Transections

Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues
or expenditures transactions that constitute
reimbursements to a fund for expenditures initially made
from it that are properly applicable to another fund are
recorded as expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as
reduetions or expenditures 1in  the fund that is
reilmbursed. ALl other interfund tLransactions except
gquasi-external transactions and reimbursenments are
reported az transfers. Non-recurring or non-routine

-34-



Nobte 1:

Note 2

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

NOTEZ TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTH
June 30, 2009

(continuad)

permanent transfers or equity are reported as residual
equity transfers.

Fund Egquity

Regerves represent those portions of fund equity not
appropriable for expenditure or leally segregated for a
specific future use. Designated fund balances represent
tentative plans for future use of Tfinancilal resources.

Use of Fatimates

The ©preparation of basic financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from Lthose
estimates.

FASR Pronouncements

The Villade has elected to apply all FARSR pronouncements
isaued after Novewber 30, 1288, that do not conflict with
ot contradict GASR pronouncements.

Cash, Cash Equlvalents and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand
depogits as well as short-term investments with =2
maturity date within a year of the date acquired by the
Village. Investments are stated at cost and consist of
certificates of depogits readily convertible to cash.
The Village’s practice 1s to limit deposilks and
investments to inhsured and collateralized demand account
and certificate of deposit. Protection of the Village's
cagh and investments 1s provided by the various federal
deposit insurance corporations as well as qualified
pledged securities by the institution holding the assets.
The bank surety is Turther explained in Noke 9.
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NoLte 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 20008

Cash, Caah Eauivalents and Investments (continued)

All of the Village’s investments are categorized to give
an lndication of the level of credit risk in relation to
the nature of the investment and custodial provisions.
Category 1 includes investments that are insured and are
held in the Village’s name. All of the investments are
of Category 1 type.

Property Tax

Property taxes attach an enforceable lien on property as
of January 1. Tax notices are sent to properiy owners by
November 1% of each year to be paid in whoile in two
installments by November 10™ and April 10 of esach year.
Sandoval County bills and collects the property taxes and

remits to the Village its propertional share. Unpaid
taxes become delinguent after 30 days. Property tax
revenue 1z recognized in the fiscal vyear it becomes
available. Available means due, or past due and

recejvable within the current period and collected within
the current period or expected to be collected szoon
enough thereafter (not to exceed 60 days) to be used to
pay liabilities in the current period.

Inventory

Inventory is stated at cost, determined on FIFO method.
Inventory is maintained at the Bath House gift shop and
is physically counted every month.

Revenue Bonds Pavable - Sewer Systemn

Series 1974

The sewer system revenue bonds series 1974 was issued in
the amount of £125,000 to the Farmers Home
Administration. The bond iz dve in annual installments
of varying awmounts through January 2014. Interest is 5%
per year. The required reserves are as follows:
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Note 5; Revenue Bonds Payable - Sewer Svystegm(continued)

Series 1874 (eontinued)

Bond Deficiency -~ Beginning October 1, 1974, an amount
nok Jless than %5125 per month until the fund equals
$12,500.

Repair and Replacement - Beginhing October 1, 1874, an
amounkt not less than 5125 per nonth until the fund
equals 312, 500.

Bond Interest and Principal - Monthly amounts equal
1/12 of the next annual installment of interest and
principal.

Maturities are as follows!

June 30 Interest Prigcipal
2010 3 1,250 s 6,000
2011 950 6,000
2012 650 6,000

2013-2014 350 7,000

Y
W
N
(]
@)

5 25,000

Required bond reserves are as follows:

Rond deficiency $ 12,500
Repair and replacement 12,500
Bond infterest and principal 7,250
Total $ 32,250

Capitalization of Interest

In conformity with Financial Accounting Standards No. 34,
“Capitalization of Interest Cost”, the Village
capitalizes interest cost for business-type activities
only, neft of related interest earned, from the date of
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Nokbe 5: Revenue Bonds Pavable - Sewer System(continued)

Series 1974 (continued)

borrowing until. the projects acquired with those funds
are ready for their intended use. During 2009, there was
no construction period interest.

Nolte 6: Notes Payable

In May 1929, the Village signed a long-term note payable
with the Econemic Development Department of the State of
New Mexico +to oblLain funds for the development of
eeonomic infrastructure. The 2.70% note payable for
5230,000 payment terms reguire semi-annual interest
payments through Jume 2000, followed by semi-annual
principal and interest payments of $§13,189 through June
2010. Loan proceeds in the amount of $516B,452 were used
to acquire approximately 4.34 acres of land. The loan
was paid in full on June 5, 20009.

On October 19, 2007, the Village ohtained a loan from NM
Finance Autherity to finance the balance of the new fire
tanker. The note payable of $60,000 has a variable
interest rate; payment terms reguire annual principal
payments and semi-annual interest payments through May 1,
2013.

On November 14, 2008, the Village obtained a loan from
the NM Finance Authority fto finance a new police car.
The note payable of $56,144 has a variable interest rate,
payment terms require annual principle payments, and
semianniial interest payments through May 1, 2014.

Maturities are as follows:

Juna 30 Interesl Principal
2010 $ 3,899 $ 22,027
2011 2,651 23,307
2012 1,859 24,030
2013 1,193 24,B29
2014 370 11,946

S8 10,072 5 106,139
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NOTES TO FINANCIAI STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Notes Payable (continued)

Changes in Long-Term Debt:

Amount Due
Balance Addltlion Deduction Balance Within

7/01/0R 6/30/09 One Year
Governmental Activitles:
Accrued compensalion $ 5,751 &5 8,785 $ AR,751 & A,785 45 8,758
Notez payable 51,063 51,063 - -
Truck loan-MNMLCA 60,000 10,005 453,985 11,799
Vehicle loans-NMER - 56,144 56,144 10,228
Tolal Governmental $ 116,814 & 64,898 3 66,818 & 114,854 5 30,782

Business Type Activities:

Revenhug Ronds $ 30,000 & $ 5,000 § 25,000 3 6,000
Ageyued compensation 6,013 _1,663 6,013 7,663 7,663
Total Enfterprise 5 26,013 $ _7,663 $ 11,013 s 32,563 $ 13,663

Note 7:

Governmental accrued compensated absences and the notes
payable will be paid by the general fund. The vehicle
loans will be paid by the LEPF and Fire special funds.
The business Lype notes payable and accrued compensalted
absences will be paid by the waste water and bath house
departments.

PERA Pension Plan

Plan Description: Substantially all of the Village of
Jemez Springs’ full-time enmployees participate in a
pubhlic employre retirement system authorized under the
Public Employees Retirement Act (Ch. 10, Article 11
NMSA 1978). The Public Employees Retirement Assoclation
(PERA) 15 the Administrator of the plan, which is a cost-
sharing multiple employer defined benefit retirement

plan. The plen provides for retirement, disability
benefits, SUrvivor benefits and cost—of-living
adjustments to plan members and beneficiaries, PERA

isgues a separate, publicly available financial report
that includes financial statements and required
supplenmentary information. That report may be obtained
by writing PERA, P.0O. Box 2123, 3anta Fe, NM 87504.

_’39_



Note

7:

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

NOTES TO FINANCIAT STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

PERA Pension Plan (continued)

Funding Policy: Plan members are required to contribute
7.00% of their gross salary. The Village is reguired to
conbtribute 7.00% for reguler employees and 10,00% for
police personnel. The contribution requirements of plan
members and the Village of Jemez Springs are astablished
under Chapter 10, Article 11 NMSA 1978. The redquirements
may be amended by acts of legislalure. The Village’s
contributions o PERA for the years ending June 30, 2009,
2008, and 2007, were $21,008, §17,664, and 5$16,059
respectively.

Post-Emvnlovment Banefits

The Retiree Health Carxe Ack (ACT) (Chapter 10, Article 7C
NMSA 1978) provides comprehensive core group health
insurance for persons who have retired from certain
publlc service in New Mexico. The Retiree Health Care
Authority is the administrator for the plan. The purpose
is to provide eligible retirees, thelr spouses,
dependenls, and surviving spouses as well as dependents
with health insurance consisting of a plan or opticnal
plans of benefits thalL can be purchased by funds flowing
into the Retiree Health Care Fund and by co-payments or
the out-of-pocket payments of eligible retirees.

Money flows to the Retiree Health Care Fund on a pay-as-
yoll=go basis from eligible emplaoyers and eligible
retirees. HEligible emplovers consist of institutions of
ligher education, school districts, or other entities
participeting in the Public School Insurance Authority,
state agencies, state courts, magistrate courts,
municipalities or counties which are affiliated under or
covered by the Educationsl Retirement Acl, Public
Fmployees Reltiresment Act, Volunteer Firefighters Act,
Judicial Retirement Act or the Magistrate Retiremenl Act.

Fligible retlrees are: {7 retirees who make
contributions to the fund for at least five years prior
to retirement and whose eligible employer during that
period of Lime made conhtributions as a participant in the
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Post-Employment Benefits (continued)

Retiree Health Care Aclt on the person’s behall (unless
the person retires before July 1, 1985). TIn khis case,
the time period for contributions becomes the time
between July 1, 1980, and Lhe date of retirement; (2)
retirees defined by the Act who retired prior to July 1,
1980 and former legislators who served at least two
years.,

Fach participating employer makes contributions tao the
fund in the amount of 1.3% of each participating
employee’s salary. Fech participating employee
contributes to the fund an employee contribution equal Co
.65% of the employee’s annual salary. LEach participating
retiree pays a monthly premium of fifty-seven dollars and
sixty-Tfive cents for the basic single plan and an
additional five dollars 1f the eligible participant
retired prior to the ewmployer’s NMRHCA effective date or
is a Former Jlegislator. Participants may also enroll in
opinion plans of coverage.

Contributions from participating employers and employees
become the property of the Retiree Health Fund and are
not refundable under any cilrcumstances, including
termination of employment or fermination of the
participating employer’s operaltion or participation in
the Retiree Health Care Act. The employer, employee, and
retiree contributions are remitted to the Retiree Health
Care Authbority on a monthly basis.

The Retiree Health Care Authority issues a separate,
publicly available andited financial report that includes
pogt-employment benefit expenditures of premiums and
claims paid, participant contributions (emplovyer,
employee, and reltiree) and net expenditures for the
fiscal yeax., The report also includes the approximate
number of retirees participating in the plan. That
report may be obtained by writing to the Retiree Health
Care Authority, 4308 Carlisle Blvd., NE Suite 104,
Albuquerque, NM 87107.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Pogt-Employment Benefits (continued)

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the Village of
Jemez Springs remitlted $3,581 in employer contributions
and $1,780 in employee contributions to the Retiree
Health Care Authority. During 2008, the Village of Jemez

Springs pald 100% of employee health benefits in the
amount of $18,682.

Bank Surety

In accordance with Section 6-10-17, NMSA, 1378,

compilation deposits of public meney are to be
collakteralized in an aggregate equal Lo 50% of deposits

in excess of Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
insurance coverage of $250,000. The Village had
depository accounts in four separate financial
institutions.
fFinancial Tnatitution/ Banlk Baok
Account Name Iype Amount Anount
Bank of America
%avings - Correction savings § _12,675 $ 12,675
No collateralization hecezzary
First Community Bank
General Checking 158,249 159,208
No collareralization
Jemez Valley Credirt Union
Sewer - zavihga 5hare Account 27,148 27,146
dewer - checking Share Agcount 7,569 6,860

Fire/Reacue Share Accounk 306 306
Road Share Account 5,855 5,855
Fire/Rascua Share Account 10,611 10,611
Eco. Dev. - GF Share Account 7,943 7,993
WW 72 Bond Share Account 13, 041 13,044
Bath House - checdking Share Account 15,106 537
Bath House - sgavings Share Account 9,289 g, 289
Library Share Account 54 51
9%, 973 61,695
No eollateralization necesaary -
New Mexico Finance Authorinty
hasrow Account - fire truel Lacrow 5 126 ! 126
Rasrow Account - police Escrow 2,252 2,252
2,378 2,378

No collateralization necessary
Cash on hand/petty cazh 650
Total cash and cazl eguilvalents 3 256,606
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NOTES TO FINANCTIAL ETATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

Insurance Covarage

The Village of Jemez Springs 1s insured through the New
Mexico Self Insurers’” Tund Coverage provided includes
all-peril on buildings and contents, c¢rime coverage,
general liability, civil rights, and persgonal injury,
motor vehicle and fleet property damage and liability,
and statutory workmen’s compensation coverage. The crime
coverage portion of this insurance includes employee
fidelity/faithful performahce coverage up to $500,000
each occurrence, The c¢laims have not exgeeded the
coverage on each of the pasgst three years.

Cash and Temporary Investments

Bank balances of cash and temporary investments at
June 30, 2009, consisted of the following:

Name of Bank/
Account Name Account No. Tywe of Agecaunt Balahce

Rank of America

davings = Correcghion 20571-50924 Savings 3 12,675
Total Bank of America 12,675
Jemeyg Valley FCU

Sewer 36820 Share Account 34,7150
Bath Houze 50331 Share Account 24,396
Fire/Rescus 42710 Share Acrcount 306
Road 40720 Share Account 5,855
Tlrxe/Rescue 2080 Share Account 10,611
Eco. Dev. - @GF 49030 Share Account 7,993
Ww 72 Bond 850474 Share Account 13,043
Library 50873 3hars Acgount 54
Total Jemez Valley FCU 86,973

NM F¥inance Authority
Escrow Account JEMEZSPRINGSA 126
Escrow Account JEMEZSPRINGSS _ 2,252
2,378

First Community Bank
General Fund 2912589 158,249
(Contlnuead)
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Cash and Temporary Investments (continued)

Name of Bank/

Accounlt Name Balance

Total all. Banks $ 270,275
Cash on hand 650
Total cash 270,825
Less: Outatanding checks {68,706)
Les4: Agency Funds (1,208)

Plus: Deposits in transit 54,387
Reconciled cash balance 5 255,398

Custodial Crecit Risk - Deposits

The Village had the following depository accounts. All deposzits are
carried at cost plus acecrued interest. The Village does not have a
depeosilt policy.

Bank
Depoaltory Account Balance
Tnsured $ 270,275
Uninzured and uncollateralilzed -
Total deposits § 270,275

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of bank failure,
the Village’s deposlls may not be returned to it. The Village does
not have a deposit policy for cugkodial credit risk. A= of June 30,
2008, $0 of the Village’s bank balance of $270,275 was exposed to
custodial credit riak as follows:

Uninsured and uncollateralized 5 0

village’s bank balance was collateralized in compliance with state
of New Mexico requirements as [ollows:

Firxst Community Bank Checlking 5 158,249
FDIC Insurance (250,000}

50% collateral requirement
(Sectionh 6-10-)7 NM3A 1878) (91,751}
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June 30, 2008

Cash and Temborary Investments (continued)

Securitieg
(Held in the mame of Village of Jemez 3prings)
Martyrinty
tleld By CUSIE Far Value Markect Value Dakte Rule
Carlsbhad Muni 142735C43 & 100,000 S 100,000 0B/01/16 4.00%

Segment Information for Enterprise Funds

The Village maintains two enterprise funds which provide
for

gsewer and bathhouse services. Segment finformation
the year ended June 30, 2009, was as follows:
Waste Water Bath House
Fund Fund Total
Operatiny revenues % 94,553 & 364,770 $ 459,323
Depreciation, depletion, and

amortization expense _ .. 5%,205 3,885 63,108
Operating lncome or (loss) (37,082) 83,532 26,450
Net income or (loss) (38,189) 63,746 25,557
Current capital:

Transfers (285) (65, 663) (65,948)
Proparty, plant, and

equlpment :

Additions - - -
Net Working Capital 13,010 6,903 49,9213
Total Assets 1,987,603 48,984 2,037,587
Bonds and other long-term

liabililkles:

Fayable from operating

revenues 18,000 - 18,0040
Met Assehs 1,557,303 26,555 1,483,098
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

NOTES TO FINANCIAIL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

Note 13: Joinlk Power Agreements

The Village has one Joint Power Agreement as follows:

For Sewer Disconnection Powers:

Participants

Responsible party for
operations
Description

Beginning and ending dates
of agreement

Total estimated amount of
project and portion
applicable to agency

Amount agency contributed
in current figcal year

Audit responsibility

Name of government agency
where reventies and

Village of Jemez Springs and
Jemez Springs Water Coop

Joint
The purpose of this JPA is
to Jointly enforce

nonpayment of gewelr accounts

11-05-02/0pen

equal

-0~
Village of Jemez Springs

expenditures are reported DFA
Note 14; Changes in_Capital Asgsets
Governmental Activities
Balance Additions Deletions Balance
7/G1/08 6/30/08

Mon-Depreciable Assets:
Land and land Iimprovements $ 381,934 5§ _31,650 § £ 413 584
Other Capltal Asseta:

Infrastructure 581,507 661,408 1,662,813

Buildings 849, Lo2 75,738 924,840

Furniture and equipment 614,163 79, 067 693,230

Improvements 209,761 209,761
Less: Accumulated Depreclation {457,998) Lo6,717 (564,715)

Total $ 2,156,535 § 836,211 5 106,717% 2,926,029
Depreciation Expense:

General 52,639

LR 7,744

Fire 41,870

Park 2,668

Library 1,116

EMS3 880

5 106,717
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Note 14: Changes_in Capital Assels (continued)

Business Type Acbivitigs:

Balance Additionz Deletions Balance
7/01/08 6/30/08
Non-Depreclable Asseta:
bLand and land improvements 5 15,125 $ 3 3 15,125
Other Capital Assela:
Infrastructure 671,940 671,940
Bulldings 1,191,839 1,191,839
Furniture and eguipment 478,142 178,142
Improvements 24,852 24,952
leza: Accumulated Depreclatlon {365,905) (63,104) (425,013)
Total 52,000,068 $ $ (63,108}% 1,537,860
Depreciation Expense:
Waste Wabeyx Depatctment 59,209
Rath House 3,888
Total g 63,108
Note 15: Regonciliation to GAAP Basis-General Fund
Cash revenues over (expenditures) $ 14,915
Increage (Decrease) In:
Taxres Receivable (14,124)
Prepaid Expense (7)
(Increase)Decreaze In:
Accounts Payable (1,223)
Accrued Liabilities {(667)
Net change in fund balances 5_(1,106)
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009
Interfund Transactions and Balances

Operating Transfers

Transferxs Transfexs
In out
Gleneral Fund § 118,821 § 36,876
Capital Project Fund 338
Debt Service 52,272
Total General Tund 171,431 36,876
Enterprise Fund
Waste Water 285
Bath Housze 65,663
Total Enterprise Fund 65,0248
Tokal Nonmajor Funds 57,244 565
Grand Total 5 228,675 s 103,389

Transfers are used teo (a) move revenues from the fund that
statute or budget reguires to collect them to the fund
that statue or budget requires to expend them and to (b)
use unredtricted revenues collected in the general fund to
finance various programs accounted for in other fiuhds in
accordance with budgetary authorizations.

The composition of infterfund balances in the fund-level
CLinancial statements is as follows:

Receivable PFund Pavable Fund Amount
General Fund Agency Fund $ 1,208

Interfund balances represent routbtine and temporary cash
flow asgsistance from the General Fund until) amounts are
transferred from the fund accounts.
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Renkt Revehle

The Village receives rental income for the olad fire
stationh building. Durinhg 2008-2009, $700 was received in
rental ingome. On July 1, 2008, the lessor exercised the
rental agreement option for an additional five years.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SFRINGS

SPECIAIL. REVENUE FUNDS

Correction Fund - To account for the Village of Jemez Springs
housing and care of prisoners. Fines and fees are collected
pursuant to offenses committed within the Village boundaries, as
provided by state law. Autherity 33-3-25

Recreation Fund = To account for the operation of recreational
activities for juveniles. Financing is provided by a tax on the
sale of cigarettes. 3tate law reguires that a portion of Lhe taxes
received on the sale of c¢igarettes be used for recreational
purposes. Authority NMSA 7-12-15

Emergency Medical Service Fund (EMS) - To account for revenues and

expenditures relating to the operatlon of an Emergency Medical
Service by the Village. Financing is provided through State of New
Mexico Health and EBEnvironmental Department, Emergency Medical
Services Bureau, Aunthority NMSA 24-10A-A to 24-10A-10.

Law FEnforcemenlt Protection TIFund (LEPF) - To account £for the
maintenance and development of the Village's police [force.
Financing 1s provided by a grant from the state of New Mexico.
Such revenue provides for the purchase and repair of eguipmenb as
well as training of police personnel and may be used only for these
purposes. Authority NMsSA 23-13-1

Library Grant Fund - To account [L[or grant received from DFA and
Sandoval County to asgiat with capital and operating expense of the
municipal library. NMSA 19878 18-2-4 and NMSA 4,5.2

Lodgers Tax Fund - To account for the revenues and expendilures per
the lodgers tax ordinance of the Village. Tunds are restricted to
the economic development of the Village. State Statute 3-38-13
Village ordinance #111

Performing Arxtg Fund - To account for revenhues and expenditures for
fund raisers and outdoor concerlts performed at the Civig Center
property for Economic Development as outlined by the Village of
Jamez Springs’ 10-year comprehensive plath.




STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NON MAJOR FUNDS
SPECTAL REVENUE FUNDS AND DEBT SERVICE FUND
June 30, 2009

ASSETS

Cash
Accounts receivable

Total Assets

LIARILITIES
Accounts pavable

Total Liabilities

FUND EQUITIES
Fund Balance

Total Fund Egquity

Tolal Liabilities
and Tund Equity

Corrections L.E.P,.F. Parks E.M.S.
5 49,200 $ 12,6375 2,461 5 583

$ 49,200 $ 12,6375 2,464 3 983

$ 8 5 26§

26

48,200 12,637 2,438 983
49,200 12,637 2,438 883

S 49,200 $ 12,637 % 2,464 5 983

L2




Library
Grants
5 2089
v 208
5 371
371
(162)
(162)
5 209

Lodgers

Tax

3 7,637

2,899

$ 10,536

5 60

60

10,476

10,476

$ 10,236

Special
Funds
Total

S 75,982

2,898

s 78,881

S 471

471

78,410

78,410

5 78,881

_51_

Nebt
Service
Fund
8 0
$ _.0
R
0

_0

s _0

Total
Non Major
unds

& 75,0987

2,838

$ 78,881

Rvog

471

471

78,410

78,410

$ 78,881



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES TN FUND BALANCES - NON MAJOR FUNDS
SPECTIAL, REVENUE FUNDS AND DEBT SERVICE EFUND

June 30, 2009

REVENUES Corrections L.E.P.F.

Grants )

Taxaes

Licenses and fees 7,280
Miscellaneous 400

§ 20,000 8

5

Parks L.M.5,
$ 1,500 8

L

Perf.
Arts

15,740

Total Revenues 7,680

20,005

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Public gafety 438
Culture and recreation
Highways and streets
Capital outlay
Debt Service

309

15,740

12,802

Total Expenditures 4138

62, 683

809 3,683

I'xcess of Revenue over
(uinder) Expenditures 7,242

Other financing sources
(uses)
Transfers - in
Transfers - out

(42, 688)

56,144
(252)

2,244 (2,168)

Total other Tinancing
sources (uses) -

55,892

Revenues and other
financing sources over
(under) expenditures
and other uses 7,242

Fund halance -
beginning of year 41,958

Fund balance -
end of year $ 45,200

13,204

(567)

2,838

$ 12,6376 2,438 $ _ 983

§ 2,838




Library

Grants

8 6,304

1,515

8,419

13,689

13,689

(5,270)

Lodgers
Tax

&
3
15,806

15,806

19,139

19,139

(3,333)

(313)
(313)

(3,646)

14,122

§_10,476

Special Debt Total

unds Service Non Major
Total Fund Munds
3 28,404 5 & 28,4104
18,859 18,858
7,280 7,280
17,675 17,675

72,218 72,218

13,749 13,749
46,539 46,539
53, 065 53,065
52,272 52,272

113,353 52,272 165, 625
(41,135) (52,272) (93,407)
57,244 52,272 109,516
(365) (565)
56,679 52,272 108,951
15,544 0 15,544
62,066 0 62,866
5_78,410 & 0 5_78,410
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
SPECTIAT, REVENUE FUND
CORRECTION EFUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance
Original Final Favorable
REVENUES Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Charges for services 5 9,830 $ 9,930 5 7,280 5 (2,650)
Intergovernmental
Taxes
Miacellaneous i 100 400
Total Revenues 85,830 5,830 1,680 (2,250)
EXPENDITURES

General government
Public safety 1,500 1,500 513 987
Citlture and recreation
Health and welfare
Capital outlay

Total expendiltures 1,500 1,500 513 8587
Fxcess of Revenue over

(inder) L¥penditures 8,430 8,430 7,167 1,263
Other financing sources

(l1ses)

Transfers - in

Tranafers - out

Total other financing
Iources (uzes)

Revenues and other
Financing sources over
(Uundex) expenditures

and other uses 5 8,430 5§ 8,430 5 7,167 5 1,263
Reconciliation to GAAP:

(Increase) in accounts payable 75

Nel change in fund balance 5 1,242
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

BUDGE TARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FARK AND RECREATION FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance
Orlginal Final Favorable
REVENUES Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Charges for services 5 3 5 »
Grants 375 3,053 3,053 -
Taxes

Licenses and fees
Migcellaneoiis

Total Revenues 75 3,053 3,053 -
EXPENDITURES

General government
Public safety
Culture and recreation 406 406 783 (377)
Capital outlay _

Total expenditures 406 406 783 (377)

Excess of Revenue over
(Under) Expenditures (31) 2,647 2,270 377

Other finahding sources
{uses)
Transfers - in 350 350 -
Transfers - out

Total other financing
sources (uses) - 350 350 -

Revenues and other
financing solurces over
(uncder) expenditures

and other uses $ (31) 5 2,897 § 2,620 8_377
Reconciliation to GAAPR:

(Increase) accounts receivahle (26)

Net change in fund balance $ 2,594



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
SPECIAIL, REVENUE FUND

EMERGENCY MEDICAT, SERVICE FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008%

Variance
Original Final Favorable
REVENUES Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Charges for services & 3 $ 5
Grants 5,000 5,000 1,500 (3,500)
Taxes
Licenses and fees
Miscellaneous 15 15
Total Revenues 5,000 5,000 1,518 (3485)
EXPENDITURES

GGeneral government
Public safety 5,840 5,840 3,683 2,157
Culture and recreation
Health and welfare
Capital outlay

Total expenditures 5,840 5,840 3,683 2,157

Excess of Revenue over
(under) Expenditured (840) (840) (2,168) (1,328)

Other financing sourges
(11ses)

Transfers — in
Transfers - out

Total other financing
gources (uses) - - — -

Revenurs and other
financing sources over
(under) expenditures
and other uses $ _(840) 38 _(BA0) $(2,168) 8 (1,328)

Budget - Cash appropriated

from prior year for current

year expenditures $ 3,151 8 3,1

(B}
—
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
SPECTAL REVENUE FUND

1AW ENFORCEMENT PROTECTION FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance
Original Final Favorable
REVENUES Rudget Rudget Actual (Unfavorable)
Charges for services 3 S $ =
Grants 20,000 20,000 20,000 -
Taxes
Licenses and fees
Loanh proceeds 56,141 56,144
Migcellaneous 5 5
Total Revenues 20,000 20,000 76,149 56,149
EXPENDITURES
General government
Public safety 20,000 20,000 10,445 9, 555
Culture and recreation
Health and welflare
Debt service
Capital outlay 53,065 (53,065)
Total expenditures 20,000 20,000 63,510 (43,510)
Excess of Revenue over
{(under) Expendittures 12,639 12,639
Other financing sources
Transfexrs — 1n
Transfers - out (252) (252)
Total other financing
sources {(uses) - = (252) (252)

Revenues and other
financing sources over
{under) expenditures
and other uses $ -

<13
i

512,387 & _12,387

Reconclligation to GAAP:
(Decrease) in accounkts payable 817
Net change in fund balance 5 13,204



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

BRUDGE'TARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
SPECTAL REVENUE FUND
LTRRARY GRANT FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance
Original Final Favorable
REVENUE S Budget Budget Actuwal (Unfavorablel
Charges for services $ S 3 S
Grants 3,000 5,404 6,804 1,500
Taxes
Licenses and fees
Miscellaneous 3,016 1,515 1,501)
Total Revenues 3,000 B,420 8,419 (1)
EXPENDITURES

General government

Public safely

Culture and recreation 8,487 13,751 13,757 (6)

Health and wellare

Capital outlay
Total expenditures B,.487 13,751 13,757 (6)

Excess of Revenue over
(under) Expenditures (5,487} {5,331) {5, 338) (7)

Other financing sources
(uses)
Transfers - in 750 750 750 -
Transfers - out
Total other financing

Ssourcas (u=es) 750 750 750 -

Revenues and cther

financing sources over

(under} expenditures

and other uses $(4,737) & (4,581) 5 (4,588) § (7}
Budget-Cash appropriated

from prior year for currenkt

year expenditures 5 4,796 $ _4,79%6

Reconciliation to GAAP:
(Increase) in accouhls payable ) 68
Net change in fund balance $(4,520)
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
SPECIAL REVENUEL FUND
LODGERS TAX FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance
Original Final Favorable
REVENUES Budgel Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Charges for services 3 3 < 3
Grants
Taxes 13,000 14,667 14,667 -
Licenses and fees
Mizcel laneous
Total Revenues 13,000 14,667 14,667 -
EXPENDITURES
General dovernment
Public safety
Culture and recrealion 21,952 21,952 15,109 2,843
Capital outlay
Total expenditures 21,952 21,952 19,1089 2,843
Excess of Revenue over
(under) Expenditures (8,952) (7,285) {(4,442) 2,843
Other financing sources
(uses)
Transfers - in
Transfers - out (31.3) ~(313)
Total other financing
golrces (uses) — — (313) (313)
Revenues and other
financing sources over
(under) expenditures
and other uses g (8,9582) 5 (7,285)8 (4,755) s 2,530

Budget-Cash appropriated
from prior year for current
year expenditures 5 12,392 3 12,392

Reconciliation to GAAFR:

Increase in accounts receivable 1,135
(ITncrease) in accounts payable (30)

Met change in fund balance $ (3,646)



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

BUDGETARY CCOMPARISON SCHEDULE
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
PERFORMING ARTS FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
Variance

Original Final Favorable

REVENUES Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Taxes 3 $ 5 5

Grants

Donations

Other recelptas 6,000 15,740 15,740 =
Total Revenues _6,000 15,740 15,740 -
EXFPENDITURES

General government
Public safety
Culture and recreation - 12,888 12,BR8 -
Highway and streets
Capital outlay

Tolal expenditures - 12,888 12,6868 -

Excess of Revenue over
(under) Expenditures 6,000 2,852 2,852 -

Other financing sources

(usesd)
Trangfers = in
Transfers - out

Total other financing
gources (uses) - — — -

Revenues and other
Financing sources over
(under) expenditures

and othe® uses §_6,000 $ 2,852 s 2,852 $ -
Reconciliation to GRAP Basis:
(Increase) in accounts payable (1.4)
Net change in fund balance $ _2,838



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

DEBT SERVICE FUND

To account for the obligations of the Village and payment of those
obligations.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
DEBT SERVICE FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance
Original Final Favorable
REVENUES Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Taxes $ 8 5 S
Miscellaneous _
Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES
Debt Service 32,898 58,772 58,772 -
Total expenditures 32,899 58,772 58,772 ~
Excess of Revenue over
(undex) Expenditures (32,899) (58, 772y (58,772) -
Other financing sources
(uses)
Transfers - in &, 500 58,772 58,772
Transfers ~ out
Total other financing
sources (uses) 6,500 58,772 58,772
Revenues snd other
financing sources over
(uhder) expenditures
and other uses 5(26,393) § - S - $

Budget - Cash appropriated
from prior year for current
year expenditures $ 26,399 § 26,359
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
Capital Improvements Projects_Fund - To account for the financing,

conatruction, and meintenance of capital outlay in the government
funds within the Village.

_62_



STATE OF NEW MEXICOC
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

RUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 3Q, 2008

Variance
Original Final Favorable

REVENUES Budget Ruddet Actual (Unfavorable)
Grants $ 1,2B2,605$ 1,282,605% 481,339 S (80),266)
Appropriations 129,277 129,277 52,652 (76, 625)
Other

Total Revenues 1,412,882 1,411,882 533,291 (877,891)

EXPENDITURES
General government 338 (338)
Public safety
Culture and recreation 112,577 112,577 101,708 10,869
Highways and streebs 1,282,605 1,282,605 505,724 776,881
Capital outlay

Total expenditbures 1,395,182 1,395,182 607,770 787,412
Excess of Revenue over

(uncder) FExpenditures 16,700 16,700 (73,779) 90,479
Other Tinancing sources

(uses)

Tranafers - in 338 338

Transfers - out

Total other financing

sources (uses) 338 338

Revenites and other

fihancing sources over

(under) expenditures

and other uses 3 16,700% 16,700 5(23,441) 53 90,141

Reconciliation te GAAP Basis:
Incresse (decrease) Accounts Receivable 182,068
(Increase)decrease in accounts payable (133, 773)

Net change in fund balance $ _(25,146)

_63_



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

ENTERPRISE FUND
The Enterprise Fund is used to aceount for the operations of
services provided Lo the general public.

Wagte Water Fund - The Village accotints for the provision of sewer
services in this fund.

Bath House Fund ~ The Village accounts for the operation of the
Bath House in this fund.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICQ
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
ENTERPRISE FUND
WASTE WATER
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance
Original Final Favorable
REVENUES Budget Budget Actpal (Unfavorable)
Charges for services $ 92,350 5 92,350 3 94,553 S 2,203
Miscellanegus 350 350 393 43
Total Revenues 92,700 82,700 94,946 2,248
EXPENDITURES
Operating expense 86,791 B6,791 72,426 14, 365
Debt service G, 500 (6,500)
Capital outlay —
Total expenditures 86,791 86,791 78,926 7,865
Excess of Revenue over
(under) Expenditures 5,909 5,909 16,020 10,701
Other financing sources
(uses)
Transfera - in
Transfers - outl (6,500) (6,500) (285) (6,215)
Total other finahcing
sourxces {(uses) 16,500) 6,500) . (285) 6,215)

Revenues and other
financing sources over
(under) expenditures
and other uses 5 (591) 3 (591) 15,735 % 16,326

Budgel - Cash sappropriated
Lrom prior year for current
year expenditures $ 35,611 5 35,611

Reconcilliation to GAAPR

Depreciation (59, 209)
Principle loan payment 5,000
5(38,474)
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
ENTERPRISE FUND
BATH HOUSE FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance
Original Final Favorable
REVENUES Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Charges for serxrvices § 331,000 331,000 $ 309,134 $(21,866)
Miscellaneous 45,000 45,000 55,850 10,850
Total Revenles 376,000 376,000 364,984 (11,016)
EXPENDITURES
Operalting expense 375,299 375,299 297,339 77,960
Capital outlay
Total expenditures 375,298 375,289 297,339 77,960
Excess of Reveniie over
(under) Expenditures 701 701 67,645 66, 914
Other financing sources
(uses)
Transfers - in
Transfers - out (65,663) (65, 663)
Total other financing
sources (uses) (65,663) (65, 663)
Revenues and olther
financing sources over
(under) expendiltures
and other uses 5 701 $ 701 1,982 $ 1,281
Reconciliation to GAAP
Depreciation (3,889)
§ (1,917)
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S8TATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

FIDUCIARY FUND

Court Fees - To account for the collection and payment of fees on
behalf of the Administrative Office of the Couvrts and the Judicial
pducational Center.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE QF JEMEZ SPRINGS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES-
AGENCY FUNDS
June 30, 20009

ASSETS Balance Additions Deletions Balance

6/30/08 6/30/08

Cash g 548 8 2,820 $ 2,260 $ 1,208

Total assets S 548 $ 2,920 $ 2,260 $ 1,208
LIABILITIES

Due ta others 5 548 § 2,820 $ 2,260 $ 1,208

Total liabilities 5 548 $ 2,920 $ 2,260 & 1,208
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KATHLEEN R. LANE, P.C. Knthleen R. Lane, CPA

CERTIRIED FUBLIC ACCOUNTANT 7520 Monlgomety NE, Building E-17

Albuquerque, New Mexico 87109
Phinne: (505) 888-3752 » £nx: (505) 878-9030
E-mall: abglane@aol.com « Member AICPA

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERE RASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS, REQUIRED BY
GOVERNMEINTAL AUDITING STANDARDS

Heclor Balderas, 9dtate Auditor
and
John H. Garcia, Mayor
and The Board of Trustees
Village of Jemez Springs
Jetez Springs, New Mexico

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmenlal
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, the budgetary
comparison for the General Fund and the Major 8pecial Revenue Funds, the
supplemental information and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the State of New Mexico Village of Jemez Springs (“Willage”) as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2009, and have issued my report thereeon

dated November 18, 20085. I conducted my audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally acecepted in the United States of America
and the standard2 applicable Lo financial audits contained in

Governmental Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United Stakes.

Internal Control Quer Financial Reporting

In planning and performing my auclh, I considered village's internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing my auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing my opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purposge of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Village’s. internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Village’s internal control over financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the deszsign or operation of a control
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing theiyr asasigned functions, fo prevent or detect misgstatements
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or
combination of contrel deficiencies, that adversely affeect Village’s
ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial
data rellably In accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a
misstatament: of Village’'s financial statementz that is more than
incongeguential will net be prevented or detecled by Village’s internal
control.
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A material weakness i3 a significant deficiency, or combination of
significant deficilencies, that result in more than a remote lLikelihood
that a malterial misstatement of the finaneial statements will not be
pravented or detected by Village's internal control.

My consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was
for the limited purpose described in the firat paragraph of this section
and would not hecessarily identify all deficlencies in internal control
that milght be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. T did not
identify any defieidencies in internal control over financial reporting
that I consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Village’s
financia)l, statemeants are free of material misstatement, I pexrformed
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, requlations,
contracts, and grant agreements noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of finangial statement
amounta. However, providing an opinion on compliance with thoge
provisions was not an objective of my audit, and accordingly, I do not
e¥press such an opinien. The results of my tests disclosed one insatance
of noncompliance or other matters that are redquired to be reported under
Government Aunditing Standards, and which are described in the
accompanying schedule of audit findings and recommendations as items
2008-1.

The vVillage’s response to *the findings identified in my audit is
described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings. I did not audit the
Village’s response and accordingly, I express no opinion on it.

This xeport is internded solely for tha infermation and use of State of
New Mexico Village of Jemez Springs management, the Offiice of the New
Mexico Btate Auditor, the State of New Mexico Department of Finance and
Administration, the New Mexico Legislative Finance Committee and
applicable federal granhtors and pass-through entities and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone othex than these
specified parties.

aFLE

Kathleen R. Lane, P.C.
Novembher 18, 2009
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

SCHEDULE QF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
June 30, 2009

Section 1 - Bummary ¢f Audit Results
Financial Statements
Type of Auditor’s Report Issued Unqualified

Internal contrel over fTinancial reporting
nmaterial weaknesses identified? _ _ Yes X No
Significant defieiencies identifiled
that are nolt congidered to be
material weaknesses? ___ Yes _X _No
Noncompliance material te financial
statements noted? Yes X No

Drior Year Findings, Resplved/Not Repeated
2005-1. Reconciliation of total cash and investments to DFA
report

Current Year Pindings

2008-1 Overspending of Funds and Budgets
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPFRINGS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
June 30, 2009

CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS

2009-1 Overspending of Funds and Budgetsg

Condition: Tt was noted that the Dbudget was overspent in the
following funds:

Emergency Medical Services (page 55) 5 1,328
Library Grant Fund (page 57) 5 7

Criteria: By statue(NMsSA 6-6-6), the approved budgel for a local
public body is Dbinding wpon all officials and doverning
authorities, and no governing authority or official shall allow or
approve claims in excess thereof.

Bffect: The budget was not [ollowed and the Village is in violation
of statute.

Causae: The Village accounting system does not clearly indlcate the
budget provided for cleax allecation of funds to the proper
accounts, There 15 too much manual processing necessary to
allocate the funds to the proper account. Also, the Village is not
using the encumbrance system to track obligations of each fund.

Recommendations: The Village should review the Peachtree income and
expense statements prepared each month for each fund and track
budget versus actual. Peachtree software has the capability to
track the budget versus actual. The repoxts should be used by the
Village Clerk to report on individual funds and insure that the
funds are in balance and adjust the budget as situations arise. In
addition, the encumbrance system should be implemented.

Response: The Village of Jemez Springs concurs,
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
VILLAGE OF JEMEZ SPRINGS

June 30, 2009
The financial statements of the Village of Jemez Springs, New
Mexico, for the vyear ended June 30, 2009, were prepared by
Kathleen R. Lane, P.C.
Exit Conference:
An exlt conference was held November 12, 2009.

Representing the Village:

John Garcia, Mavor
Diane Lewis, Treasurer/HR Director

Representing Kathleen R. Lane, P.C.:

Kathleen R. Lane
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